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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

The Directors present their report and the financial statements of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc (the
Company) for the year ended 31 December 2024,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, that give a true and fair
view of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Ple (DAS Plc) comprising the statement of financial position at 31
December 2024, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards including the Hyperinflation Directive issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, Ghana and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). In addition, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the report of the Directors.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk
management.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and
have no reason to believe that the business will rot be a going concern in the year ahead.

The Auditor is responsible for reporting on whe:her thes financial statements give a true and fair view in

accordance with the applicable financial reporting f-zinework.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company is registered to carry on the business of manufacturing, importing and selling of
pharmaceutical products. There was no change in the nature of business of the company during the year.

OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPANY

The objective of the Company is to care for life with brands, products and services which significantly
reduce disease burden and promote good health and vitality.

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc is 60% owned by Equatorial Cross Acquisitions Limited (ECA), 17% owned

by Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT). The remaining 23% is owned by a number of
individual shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/ BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the financial
statements, highlights of which are as follows:

GHS
Profit before tax 14,423,355
Profit after tax 10,407,411
Total assets 100,807,643
Total liabilities 74,050,206
Total equity 26,757,437

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.
The Directors consider the state of the Company’s affairs to be satisfactory.

PARTICULARS OF ENTRIES IN THE INTERESTS REGISTER DURING THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

Directors' interests in contracts and proposed contracts with the Company, as recorded in the Interests
Register in compliance with sections 194(6),195(1)(a) and 196 of the Companies Act 2019, (Act $92),
during the year were as follows:

Name of Director Nature of Contract Contract Amount | Contract Duration
Alex Bonney HR consultancy services GHS 8.081/month |  year
Benjamin Agyeman | Financial consultancy services { USD 1,000/month | 1 year

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding Directors’ interests in equity shares of the Company and remuneration is disclosed
in Note 25 to the financial statements. The Board Caairman owns 100% shares.in Equatorial Cross
Acquisitions, which holds 60.04% shares of Danni>x Ayrton Starwin Plc. Other than service contracts, no
Director had a material interest in any contract during the year. Related party transactions and balances
are also disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND CODE OF ETHICS

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc, in the year under review, contributed a total of GHS 54,076 (2023:
GHS 61,528) to various institutions and orgenizations across the country. Notable beneficiaries included
the Lady Pharmacists Association of Ghana for its anniversary celebration, the Homowo festival,
UNMISS Ghanbatt 12 of the Ghana Armed Forces, the Prison Service, the Fire Service, Our Lady of
Mercy Catholic Church, Aggrey Memorial School, and the Graft Foundation.

An extract of the Company’s Code of Ethics can be found in Appendix 1.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)

Executive
Nik Amarteifio

Daniel Apeagyei Kissi

Henry Otu Ocansey

Non-Executive

Alex K. Braye Bonney .

Dr. Barima Afrane

Amarteorkor Amarteifio

Kwasi Yirenkyi

Benjamin Agyeman

Moritz Acquah

Qualification

BA Economics (Wesleyan University)
MBA - Finance and Marketing (Harvard
Business School)

BSc (Hons) Mechanical Engineering
(Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and
Technology)

EMBA in Finance (University of Ghana)
Bsc. Admin. in Accounts/Finance (GIMPA)

Dip. Regulatory Economics (University of
Florida, USA)

BSc Chemistry (MCL)
PharmD (University of Southern
California)

Dip. Social Work (School of Social Work,
Darmstadt, Germany)

BA Social Work (McGill University School
of Social Work in Montreal Canada)

MA Social Work (McGill University School
of Social Work Montreal Canada)

Post Graduate Diploma in Management &
Micro Enterprise Development (Southern
New Hampshire University, USA)

Bsc. in Administration (George Mason
University, Fairfax Virginia, USA)

MBA (Columbia Business School in New
York, USA)

B. Eng. (Hons) Electronic/Electrical
Engineering (South Bank University,
London)

Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (CIMA)

External board and management position
Board Member, N.F.B Company Limited
Board Member, Omni Media Company
Limited

Board Member, Yaro Capital Ghana Limited
Chairman, Equatorial Cross Acquisitions
Limited

Vice Chairman, Ghana Agro Foods Company
(GAFCO)

None

None

Governing Council Member, University of
Education, Winneba

Board Member, Gulf Integrated Biochemical
Solutions Limited

Board Member, Entrance Pharmaceuticals &
Research Centre

Chairman, Omni Media Company Limited
President of the Artistic Committee of the
Abidjan Market for the Performing Arts
(MASA)

Policy Consultant, Design & Technology
Institute, Accra.

Programs Consultant to the Ga Mantse
Board member - SSNIT Guest House

Board member - Opportunity International
Savings and Loans Limited

CIO & Managing partner — Yaro Capital
Board Member — Ghana Climate Innovation
Center

Managing Director, Ghana Agro Food
Company Limited (GAFCO)




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)
Profile of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc (DAS Ple) Directors
MR. NIK AMARTEIFIO (CHAIRMAN)

Mr. Nik Amarteifio holds the position of Chairmsn and mejority shareholder at Equatorial Cross
Acquisitions Limited (ECA), an investment holding firm with significant stakes in Dannex Ayrton
Starwin Plc and Omni Media, which owns Citi FM and the Globe Newspape:. Additionally, he serves as
Vice Chairman of Ghana Agro Foods Company Limited (GAFCO).

In his capacity as Board Chairman, Mr. Amarteifio focuses on steering strategic Zirection and ensuring
effective governance across the Board and its Committees, adhering to the highest standards of corporate
governance. His vision includes positioning Dannex Avrton Starwin Plc as a globally recognized leader
in healthcare delivery.

Mr. Amarteifio brings extensive entrepreneurial experience, having been involved in numerous domestic
and international transactions across diverse in¢ ustries such as mining, real estate, telecommunications,
and oil and gas. Through ECA, he has held Exec:tive Board positions in companies like International
Gold Resources (1992-1996), Magnesium Alloy Company Limited (1998-1999), and African Selection
Company (1998-2011). Previously, he served as Marketing Manager at Nestle Ghana (1975-1979) and
was a member of the Ghana Investors Advisory Council (2001-2008), advising former President John A.

Kufour on foreign direct investment strategies. He also held the role of Lead Director on the Board of
Bank of Ghana (2001-2008).

Mr. Amarteifio earned his Bacheloi's degree in Economics from Wesleyan University in 1970 and an
MBA specializing in Finance and Marketing from Harvard Business School in 1973..

MR. DANIEL APEAGYEI KISSI (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)

Daniel has over 34 years' work experience, with over 12 years' experience in the Pharmaceutical industry.
He has extensive experience in Business Transformation, Mergers & Acquisitions, Business Leadership,

General Management, Manufacturing & Supply Chain Management, Engineering, Quality, Health, Safety
and Security Management.

Daniel worked with Unilever for over 21 yea's during which he held various leadership positions in
Ghana, Kenya and South Africa where he was Operations Excellence Director of Unilever South Africa.
Prior to this role, he held a Regional Director role with responsibilities across the Africa, Middle East
and Turkey Region. Daniel joined Adcock Ingram of South Africa in 2012 and was appointed Managing
Director of Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Ltd (Adzock Ingram’s Ghanaian subsidiary) in December 2012.
He is currently the Chief Executive Officer ¢f Dannex Ayrton Starwin Ple.

MR. HENRY OTU OCANSEY (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER)

Henry Otu Ocansey holds an Executive MBA in Finance (University of Ghana) and B.Sc. Admin in
(Accounting & Finance) from (GIMPA). Henry joined Dannex in 2000, as a Management Accountant
and was appointed Chief Accountant in 2004, an¢ Head of Finance in 2006. Prior to him joining Dannex
Limited he worked with Pharmaplast Limited initially as a Cost Accountant and later as a Management
Accountant. He is a seasoned, experienced executive in the General Management field, an Accountant
with a background in Commercial, Audit Management and Finance.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)
Profile of Dannex Ayrton Starwin PLC (DAS Pl¢) Directors (cont'd)
MR KWASI YIRENKYI (MEMBER)

Mr. Kwasi Yirenkyi has served as Managing Director of Starwin Products Limited, the first
Pharmaceutical Company listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange between November 2007 and July 2015.
Prior to that, he was a Non-Executive Director of the Company between March 2005 and November
2007.

Mr. Yirenkyi became the Chief Corporate Affairs Officer of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc when the
company was formed in 2019. He was the treasurer of the Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association of
Ghana, for a period of eight years ending in 2019. He has about 20 years of business operations
experience in General Management and Leadership. Mr. Yirenkyi was a Senior Corporate Manager with
Merchant Bank Ghana Limited, now Universal Merchant Bank, for eight years. He was responsible for
managing portfolios in the Public Sector, among other areas in the bank. He has had further employment
with Deloitte and Touche Consulting West Africa, as a Management Consultant.

He is a Fellow of the African Board Fellowship program instituted by Accion International in Cape
Town, South Africa. He is part of the Corporate Governance for Business Executives program organized
by Quest Frontier in Dubai. In addition to DAS Plc, he has held board positions at the Opportunity
International Savings and Loans Limited and the SSNIT Guest House Company Limited.

He is a product of George Mason University and the Southern New Hampshire University, both in the
United States of America.

MR. ALEX BONNEY (MEMBER)

Mr. Kobina Alex Bonney served as the President of the Organization of Trade Unions in West Africa
(OTUWA) and Chairman of the Ghana Trades Union Congress from 1992 to 2012. As a Unionist, he is
an expert in mediation and arbitration and has worked around the world on labor issues making him
more relatable to Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc's vision of becoming an internationally recognized and
leading brand in the delivery of healthcare needs. Mr. Bonney holds a Diploma in Regulatory Economics
from the University of Florida, USA.

DR. BARIMA AFRANE (MEMBER)

With his distinctive background as a renowned Pharmacologist with many years of experience as a
Lecturer and Medical Advisor in the US and some Middle Eastern countries, Dr. Afrane relates well to
Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc’s vision of becoming an internationally recognized and leading brand in the
delivery of health needs. In his contribution to Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc’s Board, he seeks to bring a
wealth of his experience in the design of solutions to matters of pharmaceutical innovation and
application. Currently, Dr. Afrane is Dean at Entrance University College of Health Sciences. He was
previously a Senior Lecturer and Head of Department at the University of Ghana School of Pharmacy.
He holds a PharmD from the University of Southern California and a Degree in Chemistry from the
University of New York.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)
Profile of Dannex Ayrton Starwin PLC (DAS Plc) Directors (cont'd)
MS. AMARTEORKOR AMARTEIFIO (MEMBER)

Ms. Amarteorkor Amarteifio was first appointed to the Board in 2015. Ms. Amarteorkor Amarteifio
holds a Bachelor’s and a Master’s Degree in Social Work from the McGill University School of Social
Work in Montreal, Canada. She also holds a Diploma in Social Work from the School of Social Work in
Darmstadt, Germany.

Ms. Amarteorkor Amarteifio is currently the Chairperson of Omni Media, past director of the National
Theatre of Ghana and past President of the International Artistic Committee of the Abidjan market for
the Performing Arts (MASA) in Cote D’Ivoire, where she created a forum for African artists, and other
performing arts professionals from the diaspora to network, present, perform, and discover new talents.

As member of the International Network for Cultural Diversity (INCD), Past Chairperson and Vice
Chairperson of the Arterial Network, the leading civil society network in the creative industries in
Africa, she assisted in building support for the principles and objectives of the UNESCO Convention on
cultural diversity, contributed to the ratification process, and worked to make it effective. She also
assisted in ensuring that African creative civil society has a voice in international cultural fora dealing
with policy, funding, strategic and related matters.

She is a Policy Consultant and expert in the Creative Industries at the Design & Technology Institute, a
private sector Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) institution with a pioneering
dual-TVET system featuring a "Production School." She assisted in creating activities, infrastructure and
supportive systems for young people to acquire soft skills needed for the future of work in the country.
Her work includes creating an ecosystem that requires deliberate collaborative efforts between the public
sector, Industry, and academia as the key to galvanizing policies on Youth and employment. This
activity led to the approval by Cabinet of Ghana’s first National Quality Policy with a specific section on
“Precision Quality” and the role of Precision Quality in improving Small and Medium Scale Enterprises
as well as the informal sector (Section 6.2.1 of the National Quality Policy). In addition, the Ghana
Standards Authority Bill was approved by the Parliament of the Republic of Ghana in June 2022 as the
Ghana Standards Authority Act, 2022, Act 1078 on 30th June 2022 making it law.

As consultant to King Tackie Teiko Tsuru II, Ga Mantse of the Ga State, she created a Manifesto for the
Ga State. She also created a concept for the Ga Mantse Foundation whose mandate is to improve the
quality of life within Gadangme allowing the people to thrive and for their communities to flourish. The
Ga Mantse Foundation has established partnerships and networks with organizations, businesses,
foundations and Governments in Ghana and abroad as a key element in the Foundation’s approach to
advance its mandate.

She is a Creative Industry Specialist for the National Development Planning Commission, Researching
and Organizing within the Cultural and Creative industry communities to provide content for the:

Medium Term National Development Policy, Agenda for Jobs II- 2022-2025
Medium Term National Development Policy Agenda for Job I - 2018-2921
Ghana Shared Growth and Development Agenda II -2014-2017

Ghana shared Growth and Development Agenda [-2010 -2013

Growth and Poverty Reduction Strategy II - 2006-2009

Ghana Poverty Reduction Strategy - 2002 -2005



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)
Profile of Dannex Ayrton Starwin PLC (DAS Plc) Directors (cont'd)
MR. BENJAMIN AGYEMAN (MEMBER)

Mr. Benjamin Agyeman has over 25 years of work experience in the Financial Industry, particularly in
Private Equity/Venture Capital, Mergers and Acquisitions and Project Finance in developing markets.

He was Managing Director of MPC Capital AG (Hamburg), 2 Germany based global Private Equity
Manager of real assets, with assets under management of over 4bn euros. He is an extensive experience
in Equity and structured investments as well as infrastructure transactions. He is a former Venture
Capital Investment Director at Gulf Finance House, based in the Kingdom of Bahrain in the Middle East.
Before that, Benjamin was an Investment Banker at UBS AG and prior to that a Technology Business
Analyst at Lehman Brothers International. He is currently Advisory Board Member of the Ghana Climate
Innovation Centre and Senior Advisor to Kreen Energy Ltd, UK.

He holds an MBA from Columbia Business School in New York, USA and a B.Eng. (Hons)
Electronic/Electrical Engineering from London South Bank University in the UK.

MR. MORITZ ACQUAH (MEMBER)

Mr. Acquah is an Accounting and Finance Professional with over 20 years work experience in the
industry. He is currently the Managing Director of Ghana Agro Food Company Limited (GAFCO) a role
he has successfully and efficiently held since 2012. Prior to this, he had worked in Ghana with the
African Concrete Products Ltd (APC) as Finance Controller. He also worked in the United Kingdom
with Waltham Forest Housing Ltd as Finance Director, Tower Hamlets Housing Ltd as Finance
Controller, Springboard Housing Ltd as Financial Services Manager, and the University College
London Hospitals, Whittington Hospital and Newham Health Authority as Financial Systems
Accountant, Cost Accountant, and Assistant Management Accountant respectively. He brings to the
Board a vast wealth of experience in the Accounting and Finance fields.

Profile of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc Management
MR. DANIEL APEAGYEI KISSI (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)

Daniel has over 34 years' work experience, with over 12 years' experience in the Pharmaceutical industry.
He has extensive experience in Business Transformation, Mergers & Acquisitions, Business Leadership,
General Management, Manufacturing & Supply Chain Management, Engineering, Quality, Health, Safety
and Security Management.

Daniel worked with Unilever for over 21 years during which he held various leadership positions in
Ghana, Kenya and South Africa where he was Operations Excellence Director of Unilever South Africa.
Prior to this role, he held a Regional Director role with responsibilities across the Africa, Middle East
and Turkey Region. Daniel joined Adcock Ingram of South Africa in 2012 and was appointed Managing
Director of Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Ltd (Adcock Ingram’s Ghanaian subsidiary) in December 2012.
He is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Dannex Ayrton Starwin PLC.

MR. HENRY OTU OCANSEY (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER)

Henry Otfu Ocansey holds an Executive MBA in Finance (University of Ghana) and B.Sc. Admin in
(Accounting & Finance) from (GIMPA). Henry joined Dannex in 2000, as a Management Accountant
and was appointed Chief Accountant in 2004 and Head of Finance in 2006. Prior to him joining Dannex
Limited he worked with Pharmaplast Limited initially as a Cost Accountant and later as a Management
Accountant. He is a seasoned, experienced executive in the General Management field, an Accountant
with a background in Commercial, Audit Management and Finance.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)

Profile of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc Management (cont'd)
MR. KAFUI NTOW (CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCE OFFICER)-Resigned 31 July 2024

Kafui Ntow has over 15 years' experience in FMCG industries where he has served in diverse roles in
Project Management, Engineering, Manufacturing, Supply Chain and HR. He joined Dannex Ayrton
Starwin PLC in January 2021. Prior to that he served as Compensation and Benefits Manager (West
Africa) and HR Business Partner (Ghana) for Fan Milk (Danone) Limited. He previously worked with
Unilever Ghana Limited, Guinness Ghana Breweries Plc (Diageo) and PBC Ghana Limited.

MR. FRANCIS GEORGE EKUMAH (CHIEF SALES AND MARKETING OFFICER)

Francis George Ekumah is a Pharmacist with over 16 years experience in Pharmaceutical Sales and
Marketing, Product Development and Project Leadership. He joined Dannex in 2011 and has served in
various leadership positions. He holds an MBA in Marketing from University of Ghana, Bachelor of
Pharmacy from KNUST and a Post Graduate Certificate in Project Management from The Graduate
School of Governance and Leadership.

MR. VICTOR TORNYIE (CHIEF QUALITY AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS OFFICER)

Victor Tornyie has over 15years experience in Pharma industries where he has served in diverse roles in
Quality, Regulatory Affairs, R&D and Project Management. He joined Dannex Ltd in October 2015.
Prior to that, he worked with African Global Pharma (affiliate of Global Pharma Inc, Canada) and
Danadams Pharmaceuticals Limited.

MR. JOSEPH SKUGGEN (CHIEF SUPPLY CHAIN OFFICER)

Mr. Joseph Skuggen has served in diverse roles in Supply Management, Maintenance, Manufacturing
and Project Management functions. He has 25 years of work experience with Unilever Ghana Ltd and 5
years with Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Ltd in the Supply Chain environment. He is a chartered member
of the Chartered Institute. of Procurement and Supply UK, and holds a MSc in Supply Chain Management
from Roehampton University, UK.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)

Biographical information of Directors

Age category Number of Directors
41 — 60 years 4

Above 60 years 5

Role of the Board

The Directors are responsible for the long-term success of the Company, determining the strategic
direction of the Company and reviewing operating, financial and risk performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters reserved for the board of directors, including approval of the Company’s annual
business plan, the Company’s strategy, acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure projects above
certain thresholds, all guarantees, treasury policies, the financial statements, the Company’s dividend
policy, transactions involving the issue or purchase of Company shares, borrowing powers, appointments
to the Board, alterations to the memorandum and articles of association, legal actions brought by or
against the Company, and the scope of delegations to Board Committees and the Executive Committee.
Responsibility for the development of policy and strategy and operational management is delegated to an
Executive Committee, which as at the date of this report includes the executive Directors and four (4)
senior managers.

Internal control systems

The Directors have overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control systems and annually review
their effectiveness, including a review of financial, operational, compliance and risk management
controls. The implementation and maintenance of the risk management and internal control systems are
the responsibility of the executive directors and other senior management. The systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems, including controls related to financial, operational and
reputational risks identified by the Company as at the reporting date and no significant failings or
weaknesses were identified during this review.

Directors’ performance evaluation

Every year the performance and effectiveness of the Board of Directors (“the Board"), its Committees
and individual Directors is evaluated. The evaluation is conducted by the completion of detailed and
comprehensive written survey questionnaires. The results of the evaluation are shared with all members
of the Board. Overall, it was noted that the Board of Directors and its committees were operating in an
effective manner and performing satisfactorily, with no major issues identified.

Conflicts of interest -

The Company has established appropriate conflicts authorisation procedures, whereby actual or potential
conflicts are regularly reviewed, and authorisations sought as appropriate. During the year, no such
conflicts arose, and no such authorisations were sought.

Board balance and independence

The composition of the Board of Directors and its Committees is regularly reviewed to ensure that the
balance and mix of skills, independence, knowledge and experience is maintained. The Board Chairman
is not independent and all Non-Executive Directors, with the exception of one of the Non-Executive
Directors are independent as pertains to the management of the company. The continuing independence

and objectivity of the judgement exercised by the Non-Executive Directors is being reviewed by the
Board of Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC - (CONT'D)

Capacity building of directors to discharge their duties

On appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with full, formal and tailored programmes of
induction to enable them gain in-depth knowledge about the Company’s business, the risks and
challenges faced, the economic, legal and regulatory environment in which the Company operates.
Programmes of strategic and other reviews, together with the other training programmes provided during
the year, ensure that Directors continually update their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the
Company’s businesses. This further provides insights about the industry and other developments to
enable them effectively fulfil their role on the Board and committees of the Board.

Auditor

The Audit Committee has responsibility delegated from the Board of Directors for making
recommendations on the appointment, reappointment, removal and remuneration of the External Auditor.
KPMG has been appointed as auditor of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc and this is the Company’s fifth
period of audit. Prior to the merger of the three entities, KPMG was the Auditor of Dannex Limited for 4
years and Starwin Products Limited for over 10 years.

Audit fees
The audit fee for the year is GHS 490,000 (2023: GHS 400,000).

Approval of the report of the directors

The report of the Directors of was approved by the Board of Directors

NIE AMARTEIFIO
Signature Signature’ <~ =
NIK AMARTEIFIO DANIEL APEAGYEI KISSI
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KPMG!

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dannex Ayrton Starwin PLC ("the Company"), which
comprise the statement of financial position at 31 December 2024, and the statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 17 - 77.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Dannex Ayrton Starwin PLC at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards including the Hyperinflation
Directive issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Ghana and in the manner required by the
Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Ghana, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

a5
13

KPMG a partnership established under Ghanaian !aw and a member firm of the KPMG A.O. Akoto K. Frempong-Kore F. Dennis

global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG Internaticnal J. Coleman L. Amidy E. Addico

Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. K. 8. Barnieh J. E. Annobil J. G. Lutterodt

8. 0. Aluka C. K. Atsu-Djadou



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Revenue Recognition (GHS 173,108,660)
Refer to Note 7 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue is measured based on the Our principal audit procedures included the following:
consideration specified in a contract witha  |e  Identifying relevant controls over the revenue cut-
customer. off process for all the revenue streams; evaluating
the design and implementation, and testing the
operating effectiveness of these controls; and
Assessing whether sales transactions had been

The Company recognises revenue when
goods are delivered to a customer and thus
control has been transferred. There may be a

time lag between issue of invoices and recorded in the appropriate accounting period by
receipts of goods close to the year end. testing transactions before the reporting date as well
Revenue may be recorded when control has as credit notes issued after the reporting date.

not been transferred to the customer.

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Report of
the Directors as required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), Corporate Information, Appendix 1:
Extract of Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc Code of Ethics which we obtained at the date of this report and
the Chairman’s statement, Chief Executive Officer’s statement, Audit Committee’s report and Corporate
Governance statement which we expect to be available to us after that date. The other information does

not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards including the Hyperinflation Directive issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants, Ghana and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act
992), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a higk level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. '

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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KPMG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2019, (Act 992).

We have obtained zll the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of those
books.

The statements of financial position and comprehensive income are in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

We are independent of the Company under audit pursuant to Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019
(Act 992).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Labaran Amidu
(ICAG/P/1472).

For and on behalf of:

KPMG: (ICAG/F/2025/038)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
13 YIYIWA DRIVE, ABELENKPE
P. 0. BOX GP 242

ACCRA

%D“F‘EL 2025
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023
GHS GHS

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 14 31,609,735 25,165,512
Intangible assets 15 40,812 57,628
Deferred tax assets 17(d) 2.505.900 1.807.012
Non-current assets 34.156.447 27.030.152
Inventories 18 35,888,499 27,310,795
Equity investment at FVOCI 16 - 3,190,000
Current tax assets 17(b) - 676,748
Trade and other receivables 19 17,238,068 12,181,453
Prepayments 8,753,667 2,879,771
Cash and bank balances 20 4.770.962 4.948.635
Current assets 66,651,196 51,187.402
Total assets 100.807.643 78.217.554
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 21 33,058,701 33,058,701
Fair value reserves 21(b) - 901,111
Retained earnings (6.301,264) (17.609.786)
Total equity 26.757.437 16.350.026
Lease liabilities 14(c)(v) 2,538,267 1,177,594
Loans and borrowings 23 6,418,968 10,544,326
Employee benefits obligations 22 4,819,988 4,071,255
Deferred tax liabilities 17(d) 1,330,133 2,430,710
Due to related parties 25 1.194.927 1,212,500
Non-current liabilities 16.302.283 19.436.385
Lease liabilities 14(c)(v) 605,184 974,944
Bank overdraft 20 10,292,679 12,623,335
Current tax liabilities 17(b) 1,819,846 -
Loans and borrowings 23 8,019,347 6,572,716
Employee benefits obligations 22 1,067,644 622,655
Trade and other payables 24 35,866,377 21,608,932
Due to related parties 25 76.846 28.561
Current liabilities 57.747.923 42,431,143
Total liabilities 74.050.206 61.867.528
Total equity and liabilities 100.807,643 78,217,554

The notes on pages 21 - 77 are an integral part of these financial statements.

DANIEL APEAGYEI KISSI
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note
Revenue 7
Cost of sales 8
Gross profit
Other operating income 11
Selling and distribution expenses 9
General and administrative expenses 10
Impairment loss on financial assets 27
Results from operating‘_activities
Finance costs 12
Net finance costs 12
Profit before tax
Income tax expense 17(=)
Growth and sustainability levy 17(a)
Total income tax expense 17(a)
Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
Equity investment at FVOCI
net change in fair value 16
Related income tax 17(d)(1)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Basic/Diluted earnings per share (GHS per share) 13

The notes on pages 21 - 77 are an integral part of these financial statements.

2024
GHS

173,108,660

2023
GHS

141,003,384

(78.323.083)  (63.546.084)
94,785,577 77,457,300
656,177 96,218
(18,603,709)  (14,549,026)
(56,668,074)  (47,384,906)
(1.199.111) (750.360)
18,970,860 14,869,226
(4.547.505) (3.881.011)
(4.547.505) (3.881.011)
14.423.355 10.988.215
3,655,360) (3,251,346)
(360.584) 183.138
(4.015.944) (3.434.484)
10,407,411 7,553,731

s 773,350

: 193.337

: 580,013

10.407.411 8.133.744
0.1228 0.0891
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Share Fair value Other Retained Total

capital reserves reserves earnings equity

Note GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS

Balance at 1 January 2024 33,058,701 901,111 (17,609,786) 16,350,026

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year - = 10,407,411 10,407,411
Transfers

Transfer of fair value gain on equity (901.111) 901.111 -
instrument

Balance at 31 December 2024 33.058.701 z (6.301.264) 26.757.437

Balance at 1 January 2023 33,058,701 321,098 (25,163,517) 8,216,282

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 7,553,731 7,553,731

Other comprehensive income
Changes in fair value on financial 16

asset at FVOCI 17(d)(i) - 580.013 - 580.013
Total comprehensive income _ - 580.013 7.553.731 8.133.744
Balance at 31 December 2023 33.058.701 901,111 (17.609.786) 16.350,026

The notes on pages 21 - 77 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss on financial assets
Unrealised exchange difference
Profit on disposal of equity investments
Finance costs
Profit on disposal of PPE
Write off property, plant and equipment
Tax expense

Changes in:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Trade and other payables
Amount due to/from related party
Employee benefit obligations

Cash generated from operating activities

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of equity investments

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of loans and borrowings
Payment on lease liabilities

Net cash used from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 21 - 77 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

14 (a)
15
27

16
12
14(b)
14
17(2)

23
17(b)

16
14(b)

15

23
23
14(c)(v)
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2024
GHS

10,407,411

3,351,938
34,212
1,199,111
(413,024)
(447,064)
4,547,504
(71,452)
9,801
4,015.944
22,634,381

(8,577,704)
(6,255,726)
(5,873,896)
14,658,015
48,285
1.193.722

17,827,077

(4,498,664)

3.318.815
10.009.598

3,637,064
71,452
(9,805,962)
(17.396)

(6.114.842)

6,795,428
(8,078,892)
(470.763)
(1.754.227)
2,140,529
(7,674,700)
12.454
5.521.717

2023
GHS

7,553,731

2,580,792
32,863
750,360
230,371

3,881,011
9,198

3.434.484
18,472,810

(2,168,842)
556,429
(756,752)
(2,756,329)
28,561
716.629

14,092,506

(3,900,487)

(205.983)
2.286.036

226,499
(2,330,867)

(2.104.368)

1,212,500

(5,883,988)

(220.848)

4.892.33

2,989,332
(10,403,315)
(260.717)
(7.674.700)
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. REPORTING ENTITY

("the Company") is a company incorporated ar:d domiciled in Ghana. The Company’s registered office
can be found on page 2 of the annual report. Tiiz Cempany is primarily involved in the manufacturing
and sale of pharmaceutical products. The financial statements comprise the individual financial
statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc is listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and its
interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) including the
Hyperinflation Directive issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Ghana and in a manner
required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

The ICAG issued a directive in November 2024 to accountants in business and accountants in practice, in
which the ICAG concluded that based on its analysis and interpretation, hyperinflationary accounting
will not be applicable for December 2024 financial reporting period since Ghana is not considered to be
operating in a hyperinflationary economy. In this regard, the financial statements of the Company,
including the corresponding figures for the comparative period have not been stated in terms of the
measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period.

Details of the Company's material accounting policies are included in Note 6.

3. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedi (GHS) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Ghana Cedi, unless otherwise indicated.

4. USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In preparing these financial statements, managenent has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

(a) Assumption and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at 31 December 2024 that have a significant

risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
financial year is included in the following notes:

e Note 22 — measurement of other long term benefit obligation, key actuarial assumptions;

e Note: 17 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be uiilized; and

e Note 27 — measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivables: key
assumptions in determining the expected crodit loss rate.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

4, USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES - (CONT'D)

(i) Measurement of fair values

When measuring fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the following
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 27(b)(ii) -
Financial instruments.

5. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the following
material items:

. Financial assets classified as equity investments at FVOCI, measured at fair value.
. Other long-term employee benefits recognised at the present value of the defined benefit
obligations.

Changes in material accounting policy

a. Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current

Liabilities with Covenants '

The Company has adopted Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) from 1J anuary 2024. The
amendments apply retrospectively. They clarify certain requirements for determining whether a liability
should be classified as current or non-current and require new disclosures for non-current loan liabilities
that are subject to covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. This resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for the classification of liabilities that can be settled in a Company's own shares (e.g.
convertible notes issued by a Company). The Company's liabilities were not impacted by the

amendments. Despite the change in policy, there is no retrospective impact on the comparative statement
of financial position.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies set out below have been adopted and applied in these financial statements, unless
otherwise stated.

6.1 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to
the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

6.2 Revenue from customers

The Company generates revenue primarily from the sale of pharmaceutical products. The Company sells
its products primarily to two categories of customers:

e  Open Market: Pharmaceutical Wholesalers, Pharmacies and Licensed OTC Sellers.
* Institutions: Hospitals, Clinics, Regional Health Directorates and Regional Medical Stores.

The Company recognises revenue at a point in time when the goods are delivered and have been accepted
by the customer who acknowledges receipt by signing a waybill or the invoice. The Company considers
its sale of goods as a single performance obligation. Invoices are generated as and when the
pharmaceutical products are sold. Invoices are usually payable within 60 days. Returned goods, which
are usually faulty and near expiry products, are replaced.

6.3 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term
cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay

this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

(71) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

a. Social security contribution

Under a national pension scheme, the Company contributes 13% of employee’s basic salary to the Social
Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) for employee pensions. The Company’s obligation is
limited to the relevant contributions, which have been recognised in the financial statements. The pension
liabilities and obligations, however, rest with SSNIT.

23



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

6.3 Employee benefits - cont'd

b. Tier 3 Pension fund and saving scheme

The Company has a Tier 3 Pension fund for staff and management under which the Company contributes
6.5% of employee’s basic salary to the scheme.

(iij)  Other long-term benefits

The Company’s obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension plans is the
amount of future benefit, that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The discount rate is the rate on long

dated Government of Ghana bonds. Remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

6.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each

part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful
lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:

e Right-of-use assets 50 —91 years
e Buildings 2% -3%

e Laboratory, plant and machinery 10% - 20%

e Motor vehicle 20% - 25%

¢  Furniture and equipment 15% - 20%

¢ Computer equipment 25%-33.3%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the Company from either their use or disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition of an
item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal, if applicable,
with the carrying amount of the item and are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are stated at initial cost and depreciated from the date
the asset is available for use over its estimated useful life. Cost of capital work-in-progress includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use. Assets are transferred from capital work-in-progress to an
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when they become ready for its intended use.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

6.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets (Computer software and trademarks) that are acquired by the Company are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands, is recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets. Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their

estimated useful lives, which does not exceed four years. Trademark is amortised over an expected useful
life of 3 years.

6.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the selling price
less costs to sell. Cost is determined using the weighted average method and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

6.7 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

° the contract involves the use of identified asset. This may be specified explicitly or implicitly and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

o the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

¢ the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has the right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.
In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined,
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

- the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
6.7 Leases - cont'd

The Company as a Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before commencement date, plus any initial direct costs attributable to
the lease contract and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the sife on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external

financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of:
* Fixed repayment, including in-substance fixed payments
o The effects of prepayments or rent-free periods

e Contractually-stipulated increases in rent payments

® Lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
exercise option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. A re-measurement of
the lease liability and right-of-use asset is required under the following circumstances:

(2) A change in future lease payment amount due to a market rent review;
(b) A change in fixed future lease payment amount due to rent being linked to an inflation index;
(c) A change in expected lease term ( e.g. no longer expect to exercise extension option or now

expect to exercise an early termination option).
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6.7 Leases - cont'd

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the current
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use asset in property and equipment and lease liabilities in the statement
of financial position.

Short term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases of property that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The Company

recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

6.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand,
bank balances and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less in money market
instruments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

6.9 Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair values plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.
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6.9 Financial instruments - cont'd

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

a. Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI-equity
investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVPTL:’

e it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

® its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company has made an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCIL. This election is
made on an investment-by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirement to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

(b) Financial assets - Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

e the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets; )
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
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6.9 Financial instruments-cont'd
* how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

¢ the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

(c) Financial assets - assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the prinéipal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

® contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
e terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
¢ prepayment and extension features; and

e terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the sole payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value
of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

1. Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and

impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

1. Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss.

Other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, related party payables and bank overdraft.
(iii)  Derecognition
a. Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial

position but retains either all or substantially all the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these
cases, transferred assets are not derecognised.

b. Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and

the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the

consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.

(c) Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures‘loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for bank balances
for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition are measured at 12 month ECLs.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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6.9 Financial instruments - cont'd
(c) Impairment - cont'd

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
¢ the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full due to bankruptcy
e there are adverse changes in the payment status of debtors

e the financial asset is more than 90 days past due (For trade receivables for open market customers,
default is 183 days and above. For institutional customers 365 days and above)

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit rating is equivalent to the

globally understood definition of “investment grade”,

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12

months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed to credit risk.
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6.9 Financial instruments - cont'd

Measurement of ECLs .

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
* significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

 the financial asset is more than 90 days past due (For trade receivables for open market customers,
default is 183 days and above. For institutional customers 365 days and above).

¢ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

e itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, The Company individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Bad debt recovery

Recoveries are recognised when cash is received and presented in other operating income.
Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the

amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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6.10 Finance cost

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, bank charges and interest expense on lease
liability recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The Company has
presented interest expense on the lease liability separately from the depreciation charge for the right-of-
use asset.

6.11 Income tax

Income tax expense on profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive
income or equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax
arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following
temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination,
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in
the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be
applied to temporary differences when they reverse.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax loses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences,
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity,
or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or the
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

L
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6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
6.12  Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

6.13  Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue-producing activities of the

Company as well as othér income and expenses related to operating activities. Operating profit excludes
net finance costs and income taxes.

6.14  Segment reporting

Operating segments reflect the Company’s management structure and the way financial information is
regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer, Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer (Chief Operating Decision-
Maker (CODM)).

The Company operates as a single unit that manufactures Syrups, Tablets, Creams, Suspensions,
Disinfectants, Lozenges, Powders, Capsules and Emulsions.

6.15  New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after | January 2024 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company does not

plan to adopt these standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory
unless otherwise indicated:

Effective date
Standard/Interpretation Periods beginning
on or after
IAS 21 amendments Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement| 1 January 2026
amendments of Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Contracts Referencing Nature- dependent 1 January 2026
amendments Electricity
IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting 1 January 2026
IFRS 10 and IAS 7 Standards
amendments
IFRS 18 ° Presentation and Disclosure in Financial 1 January 2027
Statements
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 1 January 2027
Disclosures
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6.15  New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd

Lack of exchangeability (Amendment to IAS 21)
The amendments clarify:

e when a currency is exchangeable into another currency; and
* how a company estimates a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability.

Assessing exchangeability: When to estimate a spot rate
A currency is exchangeable into another currency when a company is able to exchange that
currency for the other currency at the measurement date and for a specified purpose. When a
currency is not exchangeable, a company needs to estimate a spot rate.

Estimating a spot rate: Meeting the estimation objective

A company’s objective when estimating a spot rate is only that it reflects the rate at which an orderly
exchange transaction would take place at the measurement date between market participants under

prevailing economic conditions. The amendments contain no specific requirements on how to estimate a
spot rate.

Therefore, when estimating a spot rate a company can use:
e an observable exchange rate without adjustment; or
¢ another estimation technique.

Under the amendments, companies will need to provide new disclosures to help users assess the impact
of using an estimated exchange rate on the financial statements. This may include:

e the nature and financial impacts of the currency not being exchangeable.
e the spot exchange rate used.

e the estimation process; and

risks to the company because the currency is not exchangeable.

The Company is not likely to be impacted by this new standard.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with early
adoption permitted.
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6.15  New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendment to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7)

The International Accounting Standards Board (TASB) issued amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The key amendments include the following:

Settlement of financial liabilities through electronic payment systems: The amendments clarify thata
financial liability is derecognised on the ‘settlement date’. However, the amendments provide an
exception for the derecognition of financial liabilities. This exception allows the company to
derecognise its trade payable before the settlement date when it uses an electronic payment system,
provided that specified criteria are met.

Additional SPPI Test for Contingent Features: The amendments introduce an additional SPPI test for
financial assets with contingent features that are not directly related to a change in basic lending risks
or costs — for example, where the cash flows change depending on whether the borrower meets an
ESG target specified in the loan contract. Under the amendments, certain financial assets, including
those with ESG-linked features, could now meet the SPPI criterion, provided that their cash flows are
not significantly different from an identical financial asset without such a feature.

Clarification on Contractually Linked Instruments (CLIs): The amendments clarify the key
characteristics of CLIs and how they differ from financial assets with non-recourse features. They
also include factors that a company needs to consider when assessing the cash flows underlying a
financial asset with non-recourse features (the ‘look through’ test).

Additional Disclosure Requirements: The amendments require additional disclosures for investments
in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
instruments with contingent features that are not directly related to a change in basic lending risks or
costs and are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company is yet to assess the potential impact on the financial statements

The amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Early adoption is
permitted.



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
6.15  New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity

Companies face challenges in applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to contracts referencing nature-
dependent electricity — sometimes referred to as renewable power purchase agreements (PPAs). The
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has now amended IFRS 9 to address these challenges.
The amendments include guidance on:

¢ the ‘own-use’ exemption for purchasers of electricity under such PPAs, and

* hedge accounting requirements for companies that hedge their purchases or sales of electricity using
PPAs. :

Amendments for the own-use exemption

The amendments allow a company to apply the own-use exemption to power purchase agreements
(PPAs) if the company has been, and expects to be, a net-purchaser of electricity for the contract period.
This assessment considers the variability in the amount of electricity expected to be generated due to the

seasonal cycle of the natural conditions and the variability in the entity’s demand for electricity due to its
operating cycle.

Where a company applies the own-use exemption to a PPA contract under the amendments, it would not

recognise the PPA in its statement of financial position. Where this is the case, a company is required to
disclose further information such as:

° contractual features exposing the company to variability in electricity volume and the risk of
oversupply;

° estimated future cash flows from unrecognised contractual commitments to buy electricity in
appropriate time bands;

¢ qualitative information about how the company has assessed whether a contract might become
onerous; and

* qualitative and quantitative information about the costs and proceeds associated with purchases and
sales of electricity, based on the information used for the ‘net-purchaser’ assessment.

The amendments apply retrospectively using facts and circumstances at the beginning of the reporting
period of initial application (without requiring prior periods to be restated).



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

6.15 New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity - cont'd
Amendments for hedge accounting

Virtual PPAs and PPAs‘that do not meet the own-use exemption are accounted for as derivatives and
measured at FVTPL. Applying hedge accounting could help companies to reduce profit or loss volatility
by reflecting how these PPAs hedge the price of future electricity purchases or sales.

Subject to certain conditions, the amendments permit companies to designate a variable nominal volume
of forecasted sales or purchases of renewable electricity as the hedged transaction, rather than a fixed
volume based on P90 estimates. The variable hedged volume is based on the variable volume expected to
be delivered by the generation facility referenced in the hedging instrument, facilitating compliance with -
hedge accounting requirements.

The amendments apply prospectively to new hedging relationships designated on or after the date of
initial application. They also allow companies to discontinue an existing hedging relationship, if the same
hedging instrument (i.e. the nature-dependent electricity contract) is designated in a new hedging
relationship applying the amendments.

The Company is not likely to be impacted by this new standard.

These amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Early application is
permitted.
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6.15

New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards

IFRS 1 First-time

Paragraphs B5-B6 of IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial

Disclosures

Adoption of Reporting Standards was amended to:

International 2. improve their consistency in wording with the requirements in IFRS

Financial 9 Financial Instruments; and

Reporting b. add cross-references to improve the understandability of IFRS 1.

Standards

IFRS 7 Financial | 1. Gain or loss on derecognition. The amendment addresses 2 potential confusion
Instruments: in paragraph B38 of IFRS 7 arising from an obsolete reference to a paragraph that

was deleted from the standard when IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement was issued.
2. Disclosure of deferred difference between fair value and transaction price.
The amendment addresses an inconsistency between paragraph 28 of IFRS 7 and
its accompanying implementation guidance that arose when a consequential
amendment resulting from the issuance of IFRS 13 was made to paragraph 28, but
not to the corresponding paragraph in the implementation guidance.

3. Introduction and credit risk disclosures. The amendment addresses a potential
confusion by clarifying in paragraph IG1 that the guidance does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of IFRS 7 and by
simplifying some explanations.

IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

1. Initial measurement of trade receivables. The amendments remove the
conflict between IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 over the amount at which 2 trade receivable
is initially measured. Under IFRS 15, a trade receivable may be recognised at an
amount that differs from the transaction price — e.g. when the transaction price is
variable.

Conversely, IFRS 9 requires that companies initially measure trade receivables
without a significant financing component at the transaction price.

The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to require companies to initially measure a trade
receivable without a significant financing component at the amount determined by
applying IFRS 15.

Amendment on trade receivables could prompt accounting policy change

2. Derecognition of a lease liability. If a lease liability is derecognised, then the
derecognition is accounted for under IFRS 9. However, when a lease liability is
modified, the modification is accounted for under IFRS 16 Leases.

The IASB’s amendment states that when lease liabilities are derecognised under
IFRS 9, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

IFRS 10

The amendment addresses a potential confusion arising from an inconsistency
between paragraphs B73 and B74 of IFRS 10 related to an investor determining

whether another party is acting on its behalf by aligning the language in both
paragraphs.

1AS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows

This amendment replaces the term ‘cost method’ in paragraph 37 of IAS 7 with ‘at
cost’.
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6.15  New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards - cont'd

The Company is yet to assess the potential impact on the financial statements.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Earlier
application is permitted.

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements.

The new standard introduces the following key new requirements:

It promotes a moré structured income statement, in particular, it introduces a newly defined
‘operating profit’ subtotal and a requirement for all income and expenses to be classified into three

new distinct categories, operating, investing, and financing, based on a company’s main business
activities.

All companies are required to report the newly defined ‘operating profit’ subtotal — an important
measure for investors® understanding of a company’s operating results — i.e. investing and financing
results are specifically excluded. This means that the results of equity-accounted investees are no
longer part of operating profit and are presented in the ‘investing’ category.

Management-defined performance measures (MPMs) are disclosed in a single note in the financial
statements.

Enhance guidance is provided on how to group information in the financial statements. This includes
guidance on whether information is included in the primary financial statements or is further
disaggregated in the notes. Companies are discouraged from labelling items as ‘other’ and will now
be required to disclose more information if they continue to do so.

Entities are required to use the operating profit subtotal as the starting point for the statement of cash
flows when presenting operating cash flows under the indirect method.

It also requires Companies to analyse their operating expenses directly on the face of the income
statement — either by nature, by function or using a mixed presentation. If any items are presented by
function on the face of the income statement (e.g. cost of sales), then a company provides more
detailed disclosures about their nature.

The Company is not likely to be impacted by this new standard.
IFRS 18 is effective from 1 January 2027 and applies retrospectively. It is available for early adoption.
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6.15 New standard and interpretation issued not yet effective - cont'd

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures (IFRS 19)
Subsidiaries of companies using IFRS Accounting Standards can substantially reduce their disclosures
and focus more on users’ needs following the release of IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures by the International Accounting Standards Board.
For those subsidiaries that don’t currently report under IFRS Accounting Standards, the new standard
also offers a practical way of reducing reporting costs — by removing the need to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records for group reporting purposes if IFRS 19 is applied.
A subsidiary may choose to apply the new standard in its consolidated, separate or individual financial
statements provided that, at the reporting date:
e it does not have public accountability;

e  its parent produces consolidated financial statements under IFRS Accounting Standards.
A subsidiary applying IFRS 19 is required to clearly state in its explicit and unreserved statement of
compliance with IFRS Accounting Standards that IFRS 19 has been adopted.

The Company is yet to assess the potential impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 19 is effective from 1 January 2027. It is available for early adoption.

41



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

7. REVENUE
(2) Revenue stream

The Company generates revenue primarily from the sale of pharmaceutical products.

2024 2023
GHS GHS
Revenue from sale of goods— point-in-time 173.108.660 141.003.384

(b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary customer profiles and timing of
revenue recognition (which is at a point in time).

2024 2023
Type of customer GHS GHS
Open market 159,807,619 136,934,778
Institutions 13.301.041 4,068.606
173.108.660 141.003.384
8. COST OF SALES
2024 2023
GHS GHS
Cost of raw material consumed and changes in finished goods and 58,367,583 48,294,843
work-in-progress
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,594,546 846,274
Staff Cost Note 10(i) 10,316,418 9,042,108
Overheads 8.044.536 5.362.859
78.323.083 63.546.084

e T

et
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

9. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Advertising and promotion

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Other selling and distribution expenses
Hotel Accommodation and allowances

Motor Vehicle Expenses
Staff cost Note 10(i)
Short term leases

Rate and insurance
Repairs and maintenance

10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Auditor's remuneration
Amortisation

Communication expenses
Depreciation

Directors' remuneration
Donations

Exchange difference

Legal and professional expenses
Other general & admin expenses
Penalties and fines

Repairs and maintenance

Short term leases

Rate and insurance

Sanitation

Security

Bank charges

Subscriptions and renewals
Staff costs Note 10(i)
Travelling and transport
Utilities

2024
GHS
2,205,624
1,134,562
5,964,570
1,295,668
2,055,472
3,248,708
698,912
2.000.193

18.603.709

2024

GHS
490,000
34,212
1,599,714
622,830
16,579,625
54,076
868,560
1,243,872
2,511,123
67,236
3,534,480
201,403
1,125,252
437,929
808,969
892,595
390,279
22,983,358
1,765,809
456,752
56.668.074

2023
GHS
1,159,383
700,154
4,646,176
1,212,631
2,135,650
2,745,573
319,601
235,311
1.394.547
14.549.026

2023
GHS
400,000
32,863
1,143,386
1,034,364
11,245,487
65,807
1,431,436
1,119,551
3,682,293
1,200
3,019,628
639,202
599,388
394,746
794,097
822,772
381,564
19,318,254
1,035,431
423,437

47.384.906



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - (CONT’D)

@) Staff costs under cost of sales, selling and distribution and general and administrative expenses:
2024 2023
GHS GHS
Cost of sales 10,316,418 9,042,108
Selling and distribution expenses 3,248,708 2,745,573
General and administrative expenses 22.983.358 19.318.254

36.548.484

This is made up of:

Salaries and wages 32,490,805

Retirement benefit costs— Defined contribution plan:

- Tier 3 pension contributions 989,253

- Social Security contributions 1,892,121

Other long-term benefits:

- Other long-term benefits See Note: 22 1.176.305
36.548.484

The average number of employees at the end of the period 559

11. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2024

GHS

Sundry income 137,661
Profit on disposal of investment 447,064
Dividend income =
Profit/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 71.452
656.177

31.105.935

26,957,922

1,337,328
1,504,207

1.306.478

31.105.935

617

2023
GHS
105,416

9.198
6.21

5

Included in sundry income is bad debt recovered of GHS 76,125 (2023: GHS 871) and proceeds from

scraps of GHS 30,401 (2023: GHS31,145).
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

12. FINANCE COSTS

2024 2023
GHS GHS

Finance costs
Interest on loans and borrowings 2,002,544 2,254,094
Interest on overdraft 1,810,023 901,069
Interest expense on leases 734,938 725.848
4,547,505 3.881.011

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic EPS has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding.

2024 2023
GHS GHS
Profit attributable to equity holders 10,407,411 7,553,731
Weighted average number of equity shares in issue Note 21(a) 84,765,899 84,765,899
Basic/Diluted earnings per share (GHS per share) 0.1228 0.0891

At the reporting date, the basic earnings per share was the same as diluted earnings per share as there

were no outstanding shares on conversion which could increase the weighted average number of equity
shares in issue.

45



oy

*A1oanoadsal $£6°L9LC SHD PUB 90¢p1H°01

SHO Jo sjunowr Furdieo YiM SJOIYoA I0JOW PuUB puv| pjoyeary ‘FUIp[ing pue pue| pJOYdsEd[ Ul popnjour dle sjasse asn-Jo-yang

"6LYL18°ST SHD SI UBOJ 91} JOJ [BIOVR[[0D SE Pasn sjesst JO junowe Juihue) "paywl Jued OO Pue jueg NIXH YHM Py Anoey
JRIPISAO PUB UBOJ J0J A}IN0Ss Se pash usdq sary Krouryoew pue juswdmbe 9ued ‘Buip[ing pue pue| pjotosea] s Auedwio)) 94, ‘€207
1equiaoa(T 1¢ pue oyep Surioder oy) 18 Auedwo) oy 4q poy juewdinbs pue jueyd ‘Apedosd o juswnedwr Jo UOHROIPUL OU SeM 2191 ],

SEL609'1E

8PIV99%T

(60TL8T)
8E6ISEE
61166712

€88'ELT9S

(108%6)
(602°L81)
796°508°6
1€6°799°0Y

SHD
1eJ0L,

LSEVOV'E 687 VS 9C1'600°C SOcLS8E  LOS'8SVC T80°9SI'ST pTOT 1quIRdd( 1€ IV
spunowry Juikrie)y
= . GOVE97C  0E0656S 66096LV  E€9LLESL LBGIIOW T pro7 qmedng 1§ sduejeg
£ = (199‘0z1) -~ 8vs99) - J30 ojum/s[esodsIp uo osea]ay
B $65°96T YOZL9T'T 186158 12y evd LEL 68y 1eak o) 10§ a81eyD
- VL8906T  L8TE6LY 8IIIV6E  068°09C°L 0STLES'E yZ0g Avenuer | 1y
uonerdIda( pajenUINIYY
ISCPOVE  8SL'L8L'C  996'8VI6 ¥IVE€S98 0L7960°0T 890°€81'Z¢ $Z0T APQUIB( [§ e duLByg
(€6L°680°1) - 000°T2 (ZETS) LLS89 £5E°500°T SUOTJEOIJISSE[0a]/STJsuBl ],
= 005 - (T0<°6) = - J30 OMIM
- z (199°021) - (8¥599) -~ spesodsicj
L1 THT 68£°C6Y 608°0SS‘T  STVI6LT  06£°856°T  ¥T80LST SUOIIPPY
€20°TSEY 698°S67°C  8I8‘L69°L 6LV'OLSS  1S8°SEIS  168°90€81 Y20z Avenuef | 3y
150D
SHD SHD SHO SHD SHD SHO pz0z
UOLOINIISUOD) juswidmby  SIPIYIA juswdinby  ArouiydBlA] pus| pjoy3dLy
Japury hmu:a—Eco ._cocg pue pue juejq awﬂ_t—_n_m pug
0.—53:.—:& ﬁ:m— —u_a-._vmauwm

VOOT IFAHOUA 1€ AAANT AVAX HHL HO0A
SINIWILY.LS TVIDONVNEL HHL OL .mmeOZ

INTANJNOA % INVId ‘ALIAJOUd "I

D'1d NIAAYV.LS NOLHAY XANNVA



Ly

" ¥TSCOT'S? €Z0°756F  566'8LF

766717
(6£1°9¥€)
£6L°085°C
9L YIT61

TE6799°07
" (9£8°185)

L980EET

006°S16 Y

SHD
1e101,

Bk

=
ey

€05 v

(2r9v07)
8LEEOT T
L8TE6T'E

SHD
UONINIISUO)D)

Japun

157067 T9Se6T  T96WLS TPO'69L VT €707 TPquILdR( 1€ IV
¥ spunomry Juykrae) .

PL8996'T  LBTE6LY SIL'IP6'c 06809CL O0STLESE £207 Joquivdd(( [ 1€ UL ey

(ev9°L) (ggzzs) - (gz1°601)  (O¥1°18) JJ0-0113 A /STBSOdSIp U0 98BI

SZ0°18¢ 8ST1°660°T  80L°T09 ¥80°611 818°Z8Y 1.k 2y} 1oy 93reyD

6V E69°T  79£°0S8°E  OTH'8EL’E  6T6'9VTL  TLS'SEI'E €20t Arenuef |1V

uonerrda( Pae[NINdIIY

698°S6CC  SISL69L 6LVIL8'S . TSESEI8 T6890E8T €207 12quada( [ Je oduEIEg

(005°6) (esTesn) - (€z1‘sor)  (8€€011) sfesodsi(l

69%°961 055°SZ1 128°91¢ 65V°01E 061851 SUOT)IPPY

006°8¥1°T  10S‘VTLL  8S9°65S°S  SIS'0E6'L 6E0°65T'8I €207 Arenuef |3V

150D

SHO SHD SHOD SHOD SHO €707
juswdmbry  sooIyoA juowmdinby  A1ouIydBIAl puB[ POy
Jomdwoy  A0I0JA pue puejuely ‘Swmippng pue

QINFIEAN Y pug[ pjoyasead|

@INOD “INTAJINOHA % INVId ‘ALIAIOUd "I

PZOT HAHAADAA 1€ FHANT HVIEA HHL S04
SINHALY.LS TVIONVNIA THL O.L SELON
OTd NIAMY VLS NOLYAY XANNVA



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

14. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT- CONT'D

(a) Depreciation

Depreciation has been charged in the financial statements as follows:

2024 2023

GHS GHS

Cost of sales 1,594,546 846,274
Selling and distribution expenses 1,134,562 700,154
General and administrative expenses 622.830 1.034.364
3.351.938 2.580.792

(b) Disposal of property, plant and equipment 2024 2023
GHS GHS

Cost 187,209 581,836
Accumulated depreciation (187.209) (346.139)
Carrying amount - 235,697
Proceeds of sale (71.452) (226.499)
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (71.452) 9.198

(c) Leases

(i) Leases as a lessee

The Company leases land and buildings and motor vehicles. The land leases typically run for a period of
50 to 91 years and buildings for a period of 1 to 2 years. For lease of buildings that run for a period of 1
year, the Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use and lease liabilities for these leases because

they are short-term leases. In 2024, the Company entered into new lease agreements to acquire new
motor vehicles for a period of 5 years.

L
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

14. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT- CONT'D

(c) Leases (- cont'd)

(ii) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are presented as part of property, plant and equipment.

%

Land & Motor Vehicles Total

Cost Buildings GHS GHS
GHS
Balance at 1 January 2024 10,665,722 3,018,598 13,684,320
Additions 1.170.266 1.432.558 2.602.824
Balance at 31 December 2024 11.835.988 4.451.156 16.287.144
Balance at 1 January 2023 10,731,100 3,018,598 13,749,698
Additions 44,960 - 44 960
Reversals (110.338) - (110.338)
Balance at 31 December 2023 10.665.722 3.018.598 13.684.320
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2024 1,151,524 836,403 1,987,927
Charge for the year 270.158 846.819 1.116.977
Balance at 31 December 2024 1.421.682 1.683.222 3.104.904
Balance at 1 January 2023 964,794 71,272 1,036,066
Charge for the year 267,870 765.131 1,033,001
Reversals (81.140) - (81.140)
Balance at 31 December 2023 1.151.524 836.403 1.987.927
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2024 10.414.306 2.767,934 13,182,240
At 31 December 2023 9.514.198 2.182.195 11.696.393
2024

(iii) Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss GHS
Interest on lease liabilities 734,938
Expenses relating to short-term leases 900,315

(iv) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases* 2.076.898

2023
GHS
745,324
958,803

1.924.975
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(c) Leases (- cont'd)

2024 2023
(v) Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial GHS GHS
position at 31 December

Balance at beginning 2,152,538 2,373,386
Interest on lease liabilities 734,938 745,324
Additional lease 1,432,558 -
Principal payments (470,763) (220,848)
Interest payments (705.820) (745.324)
Balance at 31 December 3.143.451 2.152.538
Less than one year 605,184 974,944
More than one year 2.538.267 1.177.594
3.143.451 2,152,538

*Short term lease and interest on lease paymenis are classified as operating activities

Extension options

Some leases of office premises contain extension options exercisable by the Company up to one year before the end of
the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Company seeks to include extension options in new leases to
provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors.
The Company assesses at lease commencement due date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. The Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is significant event or
significant changes in circumstances within its control.

The Company has assessed that all contractual extension options will be exercised and have therefore included all
potential future lease payments in the calculation of the lease liability.

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Trademark Total
Cost i GHS GHS GHS
Balance at 1 January 2024 1,022,851 304,677 1,327,528
Additions = 17.396 17.396
Balance at 31 December 2024 1.022.851 322.073 1.344.924
Balance at 1 January 2023 1,022,851 304,677 1,327,528
Additions - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 1.022.851 304.67 1.327.528
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2024 965,223 304,677 1,269,900
Charge for the year 33.713 499 34.212
Balance at 31 December 2024 998.936 305,176 1,304,112
Balance at 1 January 2023 932,360 304,677 1,237,037
Charge for the year 32.863 - 32.863
Balance at 31 December 2023 965,223 304.67 1.269.900
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2024 23.915 16.897 40,812
At 31 December 2023 57.628 - 57.628




DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

16. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI

2024 2023

GHS GHS
Balance at beginning 3,190,000 2,416,650
Net change in fair value - 773,350
Disposal (3.190.000) -
Balance at 31 December = 3.190.000
Proceeds of sale 3.637.064 -
Profit on disposal of equity investments (447.064) -

This relates to the value of 374,955 equity shares (0.169% of shareholding) in Stanbic Bank Ghana Limited.
The Company designated these investments at FVOCI because these equity securities represent investments
that the Company had intended to hold for long term strategic purposes prior to 2023.

In 2024, the Company disposed of the equity investment for strategic reasons. The cumulative gain of GHS
901,111 relating to these investments was transferred to retained earnings.

No amount (2023: GHS -) was received as dividend during the year.

17. INCOME TAXES

(@) Amounts recognised in profit or loss é(ﬁ; é‘gg
Corporate tax expense 5,067,907 263.882
Effect of tax audit adjustment

386,918 -
Growth and sustainability levy

360,584 183.138
Total current tax expense 5.815.409 447.020
Deferred tax (1.799.463) 2.987.464
Total income tax expense 4.015.944 3.434.484
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

17. INCOME TAXES - (CONT'D)

(b)  Current tax assets and liabilities

Balance at Charge for Payments/tax Adjustment Balance at
1 dan the year credits during 31 Dec
the year

2024 GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS

Income tax
Up to 2023 (653,993) - - 386,918 (266,985)
2024 - 5.067.907 (2.897.213) - 2.170.694
(653.903) 5.067.907 (2.897.213) 386918 1.903.709
Growth and sustainability levy (22.845) 360.584 (421.602) - (83.863)
Total (676.748) 5.428.491 (3.318.815) 386.918 1.819.846
Balance at Charge for Payments/tax credits Balance at
1 Jau: the year during the year 31 Dec

2023 '

GHS GHS GHS GHS

Income tax
Up t02020 (630,897) - - (630,897)
2021 (218,464) - - (218,464)
2022 (33,262) - - (33,262)
3023 s 263.882 (35.162) 228.720
(882.623) 263.882 (35.162) (653.903)
Growth and sustainability levy . 183.138 (205.983) (22.845)
Total (882.623) 447.020 (241.145) (676.748)

Taxes paid comprise of utilisation of tax credits amounting to GHS 77,478 (2023: GHS 35,162) and payments
amounting GHS (3,241,337) (2023: GHS (205,983)).

Tax positions up to the 2023 year of assessment have been agreed with the tax authorities. The remaining tax
position is subject to agreement with the tax authorities.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

17. INCOME TAXES - (CONT'D)

(¢)  Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2024 2024 2023 2023
% GHS % GHS
Profit/(loss) before tax 14,423 355 10.988.215
Income tax using domestic tax rate 25.00 3,605,839 25.00 2,747,054
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 15.07 2,173,539 13.71 1,507,022
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary
differences - - 5.78 634,664
Tax at different rate 2.50 360,584 1.67 183,137
Effect of tax audit adjustment 2.68 386.918 - -
Tax exempt income 17.41) (2.510,936) (14.90)  (1.637.393)
Tax expenses 27.84  4.015.944 31.26 3.434.484

(d) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

2024 2023
Assets Liabilities Total Assets Liabilities Total
GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS
Property, plant and equipment - (1,330,133) (1,330,133) - (1,633,210) (1,633,210)
Employee benefit obligations 1,471,938 - 1,471,938 1,173,507 - 1,173,507
Equity investment - - - - (797,500) (797,500)
Inventories 115,867 - 115,867 15,188 - 15,188
Trade receivables 918.095 - 918.095 618,317 - 618,317
2.505.900 (1.330.133 1,175,767 1,807.012 (2,430,710 623.698
Q) Movements in temporary differences during the year
Recogn'd in
Balance at profit or Recogn'din  Balance at
1 January loss OCI 31 December
GHS GHS GHS GHS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Property, plant and equipment (1,633,210) 303,077 - (1,330,133)
Employee benefit obligations 1,173,507 298,431 - 1,471,938
Equity investment (797,500) 797,500 - -
Inventories : 15,188 100,679 - 115,867
Trade receivables 618.317 299.778 - 918.095

(623.698) 1,799.465

1.175,767



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

17. INCOME TAXES - (CONT'D)

@ Movements in temporary differences during the year (- cont'd)
Recogn'd in

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Balance at profit or Recogn'din  Balance at
1 January loss OCI 31 December
GHS GHS GHS GHS
Property, plant and equipment (1,746,671) 113,461 - (1,633,210)
Employee benefit obligations 931,844 241,663 - 1,173,507
Equity investment (604,163) - (193,337) (797,500)
Tax losses 1,344,714 (1,344,714) - -
Inventories : 128,335 (113,147) - 15,188
Finance costs 2,068,651 (2,068,651) - -
Trade receivables 434393 183.924 - 618.317

2,557,103 (2,987.464) (193.337) (623.698)

18. INVENTORIES 2024 2023
See accounting policy in Note 6.6 GHS GHS
Raw and packaging materials 26,320,181 18,112,875
Work-in-progress 1,468,360 106,784
Consumable spares 2,875,564 1,397,490
Finished goods 5.224.394 7.693.646

35888499  27.310.795

The value of raw and packaging materials was determined after writing down the inventory cost due
to obsolescence of GHS 463,465 (2023: GHS 60,751). The write-downs are included in cost of sales.
Inventory recognised in cost of sales is GHS 78,323,083 (2023:GHS 63,546,084).
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2024 2023

GHS GHS
Trade receivables 20,237,299 14,038,862
Impairment allowance Note 27.c.ii (3.672.381) (2.473.270)
Trade receivables, net 16,564,918 11,565,592
Staff receivables 673.150 615.861

17.238.068  12.181.453

The maximum amount due from employees of the Company during the year amounted to
approximately GHS 673,150 (2023: GHS 615,861).

Included in the staff receivables is an amount of GHS 145,116 (2023: GHS 87,083) relating to
advances and accountable imprest to management staff.

During the year, an amount of GHS 1,199,111 was recognized as impairment loss. (2023: GHS
735,699).

Credit and market risks, and impairment losses

Information about the Company's exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade
receivables is included in Note 27.
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DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2024 2023

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK GHS GHS
OVERDRAFT g

Bank balances 4,622,719 4,881,176
Cash balances 148.243 67.459
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position 4,770,962 4,948,635
Bank overdrafts * (10,292.679) (12.623.335)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows (5.521.717)  (7.674.700)

*Included in bank overdrafts are:

a) credit facilities totalling GHS 8,000,000 obtained from GCB Bank Limited at the rate of 20% for
GHS6,000,000 (1D1F) and 30.31% for GHS 2,000,000 (Commercial rate).(2023: GHS 8,000,000 at the
rate of 32.18%). The 1DIF subsidy ended in October 2024 and the total credit facilities of GHS 8,000,000
was charged at commercial rate of 30% (29.35% plus 0.65 %) which is used to finance working capital.

b) import finance facilities (IFF) of GHS 8,000,000 obtained from GCB Bank Limited at the rate of (20%
for GHS6,000,000 (ID1F) and 30.31% for GHS 2,000,000 (Commercial rate) (2023: GHS 8,000,000 at
the rate of 32.18%). The 1DIF subsidy ended in October 2024 and the total credit facilities of GHS

8,000,000 was charged at commercial rate of 30% (29.35% plus 0.65 %) which is used to finance
importation of raw materials.

These facilities are payable on demand and expire 12 months from the date of disbursement. The facilities
will expire on 21 August 2025.

At the reporting date, the Company recorded a bank ledger balance of GHS (5,669,960) (2023: GHS
(6,324,090)) in its statement of financial position as compared to the bank statements balance of GHS
(3,931,580) (2023: GHS (5,429,698)). The transactions making up the difference between the bank ledger
balance and the bank statements balance amounting to GHS (1,738,380) (2023: GHS (894,392)), which

includes various reconciling items such as unpresented cheques, uncredited lodgements and unresolved
debit and credit items on the bank statements.

Subsequent to the year end, reconciling items amounting to GHS (1,550,301) (2023: (1,953,698)) were
resolved and reflected in the financial statement as appropriate.
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21. STATED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Stated capital

See accounting policy in Note 6.9 No. of Shares Proceeds

Authorized 2024 2023 2024 2023
uthorize GHS GHS

Equity shares of no par value 500,000.000 500.000.000

Issued

For cash 84,765,809 84.765.899 33.058.701  33.058.701

There is no share in treasury and no call or instalment unpaid on any share. Additionally, there are
no called- up shares.

Holders of these shares are entitled to dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share of general meetings of the Company.

(b) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity securities
designated at FVOCI.

(¢) Retained earnings

From the inception of the Company, retained earnings comprise the net amount after the equity
share exchange as part of the merger arrangement between Dannex Limited, Ayrton Drug
Manufacturing Limited and Starwin Products Limited. Subsequently, it represents the
accumulation of profit or losses and gain from the remeasurement of employee benefit obligations.

57



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

(a)  Other long-term benefits
Long service award is an unfunded scheme to reward staff for their continuous and dedicated
service to the Company. Staff who serve for ten years and above are awarded with cash donations.

The plan is not funded. The awards vary depending on the number of years served by employees
who meet the qualifying criteria.

For the other long-term benefits, a full and independent actuarial valuation was carried out at the

end of the period using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with IAS 19 Employee
Benefits.

Long service

award
GHS
Balance at 1 January 2024 4,693,910
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 513,243
Past service cost/(credit) -
Interest cost 861,670
Actuarial gain arising from financial .
assumptions (168,608)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from other
sources -
3.900.215
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22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONT"D)

Benefits paid
Balance at 31 December 2024

Balance at 1 January 2023

Included in profit or loss

Current service cost

Past service cost/(credit)

Interest cost

Actuarial loss arising from financial
assumptions

Actuarial gain arising from other sources

Benefits paid
Balance at 31 December 2023

Less than one year
More than one year

2024
GHS
1,067,644
4.819.988

Long service
award
GHS

(12.583)
5,887,632

3,977,281

451,943
714,564
139,971

5.283.759

(589.849)
4,693.910

2023
GHS
622,655
4.071.255

5.887.632

4.693.910



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONT"D)

The actuarial assumptions at the period-end were as follows:

Discount rate
General inflation
Salary inflation

Withdrawal rates (See table below): - 2024
and 2023
Age

Less than 30
Age 30to 39
Age 40to 49
Age 50 to 60
Greater than 60

Sensitivity analysis

2024

19.80%
23.80%
23.80%

Males

5%
4%
3%
2%
-%

2023

19.00%
16.00%
16.00%.

Females

5%
4%
3%
2%
-%

Reasonable changes at the reporting date to the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the employee benefit obligations by the amounts shown
below. Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flow expected under
the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Discount rate (1% movement)
Withdrawal rate (10% movement)
Salary rate (1% movement)
Mortality (1% movement)

Discount rate (1% movement)
Withdrawal rate (10% movement)
Salary rate (1% movement)
Mortality (1% movement)

2024 2024
GHS GHS
Increase Decrease
Long service awards
5,603,897 6,200,827
5,785,037 -
6,209,202 5,592,085
5,548,544 -
2023 2023
GHS GHS
Increase Decrease
Long service awards
4,450,537 4,962,721
4,605,623 -
4,969,600 4,440,707
4,403,073 -
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23. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The Company has the following secured facilities with local banks at the reporting date:

2024 2023

GHS GHS

Ghana Exim Bank Loan (Restructured) (Note 1 below) 6,602,351 8,907,053
GCB Bank PLC (Note 2 below) 7.835.964 8.209.989
Total ) 14.438.315 17.117.042
Current 8,019,347 6,572,716
Non- Current 6.418.968 10.544.326
Total 14.438.315 17.117.042

Note 1

This is a GHS 33,750,000 loan facility obtained from Ghana Exim Bank in January 2018 by the
legacy Company Dannex Limited. The purpose of the loan is to augment working capital and to
refinance existing loans at a nominal rate of 8%. In May 2020, the interest rate of 8% was revised to
13.5% for the undisbursed amount of GHS 8,500,000. The loan facility was restructured in August
2022 and matures in 2027. The loan was secured by a mortgage over landed commercial properties
previously owned by erstwhile Ayrton Drug Manufacturing Limited. The Company is in the process
of changing the property title to its name.

Note 2

This is a GHS 20,689,397 (2023: GHS 20,689,397) loan facility obtained from GCB Bank Plc in
July 2020 at a nominal interest rate of 10% and matures in 2025 under the Ministry of Trade and
Industries” Industrial Revitalisation Programme (Stimulus Package thereby qualifying for an interest
subsidy of 50% on the applicable interest of 20%. The purpose of the loan is to refinance outstanding

loans with GCB Bank PLC, Zenith Bank Ghana Limited and Ecobank Ghana PLC and financing of
some capital expenditures.
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23. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONT"D)

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

31 December 2024

Ghana Exim Bank Loan
(restructured)

Lease facility

GCB Bank PLC
Shareholder Loan

Bank overdraft

31 December 2023

Ghana Exim Bank Loan
(restructured)

Lease facility

GCB Bank PLC
Shareholder Loan

Bank overdraft

Change in
Opening bank
balance overdraft
GHS GHS
8,907,053 -
2,152,538 -
8,209,989 -
1,212,500

12,623,335 (2.330.656)
33.105.415(2.330.656)

Capital Interest Interest Closing

Additions repayment costs paid balance
GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS

- (2,304,702) 969,678 (969,678) 6,602,351
1,432,558 (470,763) 734,938 (705,820) 3,143,451
5,362,870 (5,736,895) 950,438 (950,438) 7,835,964
- (37,295) 82,427  (62,705) 1,194,927

- - 1.810.023 (1.810.023) 10.292.679
6.795.428 (8.549,655) 4.547.504 (4.498.664) 29.069.372

10,943,475 -

2,373,386 -
12,057,555 -
10.866.198 1.757.137
36.240.614 1.757.137

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
See accounting policy in Note 6.9

Trade payables

Other payables
Accrued expenses**

- (2,036,422) 1,237,373 1,237,373)

- (220,848) 745,324 (745,324)

- (3,847 566) 1,016,721 1,016 721)
1,212,500

8,907,053
2,152,538
8,209,989
1,212,500
901. 069 (901, 069) 12.623.335
1,212,500 (6.104.836) 3.900.487 3.900.487) 33.105.415

2024 2023

GHS GHS
19,725,149 12,146,910
10,608,159 4,967,562
5.533.069 4.494.460

35.866.377 21.608.932

** Included in accrued expenses is GHS 936,228 (2023: GHS 679,426) relating to accrued unpaid leave

as at period end.

Information about the Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 27.

62



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dannex Ayrton Starwin Plc (DAS Plc) is 60.04% owned by Equatorial Cross Acquisitions Limited
(ECA), which is ultimately owned by Nik Amarteifio, 17.14% owned by Social Security and National
Insurance Trust (SSNIT). The remaining are owned by a number of individual shareholders.
Shareholding information disclosed at Note 32.

In the course of the year, the following transactions took place with related parties.

2024 2023
GHS GHS
(i) Amounts due to related parties
Other* 76,846 28,561
Shareholder loan** 1.194.927 1.212.500
Total 1.271.773 1,241,061
Reconciliation of shareholder loan**
Opening balance 1,212,500 -
Additions - 1,212,500
Interest 82,427 -
Repayment (100.000) =
Closing balance 1.194.927 1.212.500

*These are directors' training expenses paid by Nik Amarteifio on behalf of the Company.

**The shareholder has approved a loan of GHS 2 million. The Company has drawn down
GHS 1,212,500 as at the end of the year. The shareholder loan was obtained from Nik
Amarteifio in March 2023 at a rate of 10% per annum for a period of 48 months. The loan or
any portion of it advanced shall remain interest free for Twelve (12) months from the
drawdown and no paymeént of principal or interest or any component of either shall be due for
a period of twelve months from the date of drawdown.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(i) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly including any Director (whether
executive or otherwise) of the Company.

(a) Key management personnel compensation included the

Jfollowing: 2024 2023
Short-term employee benefits GHS GHS
Executive Directors 15,277,677 10,524,977
Non-Executive Directors 1,301,948 720,510
Other key management personnel 2.208.379 2.032.641

18.788.004 13.278.128
(b)  Key management personnel transactions

(iif)
1.

(iv)

There is a personal guarantee by Nik Amarteifio, the Board Chairman of the Company as collateral
for obtaining the GCB Bank PLC loan facility.

During the year, the Company paid GHS 100,000 to Nik Amarteifio as part repayment of
Shareholder loan (2023: GHS -).

The Company guarantees loan taken by management staff under an approved staff loan scheme with
Ecobank Ghana. An amount of GHS 2,680,041 (2023 : GHS 3,120,330) has been drawn down.

Other related party transactions

Alex Bonney, a member of the Board, provides HR consultancy services for the Company, an
amount of GHS 96,973 (2023: GHS 67,026) was paid to him during the period as consultancy fees.
An amount of GHS 6,500 was outstanding at the reporting period.

Benjamin Agyeman, a member of the Board, provides financial consultancy services for the
Company, an amount of GHS 167,843 (2023: GHS 155,416) was paid to him during the period as
consultancy fees. An amount of GHS 39,461 was outstanding at the reporting period.

Directors’ shareholding

The Directors named below held the following number of shares in the company as at the reporting date
and at 31 December 2023:

Name of Director No. of shares % of issued capital
Nik Amarteifio (ECA) * 50,891,061 60.0
Amarteokor Amarteifio 3.207.604 3.8

54.098.665 63.8

*Shares held through Equatorial Cross Acquisitions.
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26. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments reflect the Company’s management structure and the way financial information is
regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company operates as a single business unit that manufactures Syrups, Tablets, Creams, Suspension,
Disinfectant, Lozenges, Powders, Capsules and Emulsion.

Revenue by Product

2024 2023

GHS GHS

Syrups 97,595,742 77,142,511
Tablets 38,010,252 31,443,600
Creams/ointments 11,396,788 11,059,864
Suspensions 5,644,176 4,998,022
Powders 18,253,621 14,561,487
Capsules 485,589 847,199
Emulsions 1.722.492 950.701
: 173.108.660 141.003.384

All sales are made in Ghana. Segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers, whilst
segment asset is based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue by Geographical location

2024 2023

GHS GHS

Accra 88,881,771 76,418,993
Kumasi 42,294,730 31,452,950
Tamale 22,703,483 18,112,923
Takoradi 19.228.676 15,038.518
173.108.660 141.003.384

The Company’s non-current assets amounting to GHS 34,156,447 (2023: GHS 27,030,152) are in Ghana.

Major Customer

There was no revenue for transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10% of the
Company’s total revenue during the period.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

a. Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for
financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

The Company recognised transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Carrying amount
Financial assets at Other financial

FVOCI amortised cost liabilities Total
31 December 2024 Note GHS GHS GHS GHS
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables* 19 - 17,238,068 - 17,238,068
Cash and cash equivalents 20 _ - 4.622.719 _ - 4622719
Total assets - 21.860.787 - 21.860.787

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Bank overdraft 20 - - 10,292,679 10,292,679
Loans and borrowings 23 - - 14,438,315 14,438,315
Trade and other payables** 24 - - 29,667,684 29,667,684
Due to related party 25 _ - _ - 1.271.773 1.271.773
Total liabilities _ - - 55.670.451 55.670.451
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D

a. Accounting classifications and fair values - (cont'd)

Carrying amount

Note FVOCI

31 December 2023 GHS
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity Investment at FVOCI 16 3,190,000

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Trade and other receivables* 19 -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 -

Total assets =

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Bank overdraft 20 -
Loans and borrowings 23 -
Trade and other payables** 24 -
Due to related party 25 -
Total liabilities -

* Trade and other receivables are less prepayments.

Financial assets at Other financial

amortised cost
GHS

12,181,453
4.881.176

17.062.629

liabilities Total
GHS GHS

- 3,190,000

- 12,181,453
_ - 4.881.176

17.062.629

_h_*

12,623,335 12,623,335
17,117,042 17,117,042
19,171,154 19,171,154
1.241.061 1.241.061

50,152,592 50.152.592

** Trade and other payables are less all statutory payables such as PAYE, withholding taxes, and social

security.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D

b. Measurement of fair values

i Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets measured at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2024 GHS GHS GHS
Equity Investment at FVOCI - - -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2023 GHS GHS GHS
Equity Investment at FVOCI - 3,190,000 -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2024 GHS GHS GHS
Bank overdraft - - 10,292,679
Loans and borrowings - - 38,471,525
Trade and other payables - - 29,667,684
Due to related party - - 1.014.651

- - 79.446,539

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 2023 GHS GHS GHS
Bank overdraft - - 12,623,335
Loans and borrowings - - 31,090,188
Trade and other payables - - 19,171,154
Due to related party 946.472

63.831.149

ii. Valuation technigues and significant unobservable inputs

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring financial instruments.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
The valuation model considers the

present value of future cashflows,

discounted at the market rates of

interest at the reporting date.

Financial assets measured at FV This is determined by the Not applicable
(Equity Investment at FVOCI) comparable companies' approach.

Loans and borrowings
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D

c. Financial risk management
This Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Page
° Credit risk (See Note c.ii) 69
° Liquidity risk (See Note c.iii) 72
° Market risk (See Note c.iv) 3

i.  Risk management framework

The Company has developed a comprehensive risk management process to facilitate control and
monitoring of these risks. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. Management of financial risk is centralized at
the Company’s corporate group level, where financial risk is managed in accordance with the policies
and procedures established at the Group level, in order to protect profit and cash flows.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer,
the industry and country in which the customers operate. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers
are grouped according to their credit characteristics; including whether they are open market customers
(wholesalers, retailers) or institutional customers.

The Company has credit control policies which cover procedures for accepting new customers, setting credit
limits, dealing with overdue amounts and delinquent payers. Credit exposure on trade receivable is covered by
customers issuing post-dated cheques to cover amount owed. The Company does not require collateral in
respect of trade and other receivables,

The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable at the reporting date by type was:

2024 2023
GHS GHS
Trade receivables 16,564,918 11,565,592
Staff receivables 673,150 615,861

17.238.068 12,181.453
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Financial risk management - (Cont'd)

Credit risk - (Cont'd)

The aging of accounts receivable at the reporting date was:

Open market customers

Current (not past due)
1- 60 days past due

61- 120 days past due
121- 182 days past due
More than 183 days due

Institutional customers - NHIA Accredited Institutions

Current (not past due)
1- 60 days past due

61- 120 days past due
121- 182 days past due
183 - 243 days past due
244 - 305 days past due
306 - 365 days past due
More than 365 days due

Regional Medical Stores
Current (not past due)
Total

20.237.299 (3.672.381)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D

2024

Weighted Carrying Impairment  Credit Weighted Carrying Impairment

loss rate amount impaired loss rate amount
GHS GHS GHS GHS
3.03 10,520,305 (319,010) No 5.93 8,051,927 (477,794)
3.49 2,853,558  (99,564) No 442 912,193 (40,298)
7.92 230,342  (18,241) No 7.50 315,483 (23,648)
18.25 94,270  (17,201) No 16.80 268,755 (45,163)
71.44  269.781 (192.739) Yes 65.89 361.356 (238.114)
13.968.256 (646.755) 9.909.714 (825.017)

2024

Weighted Carrying Impairment  Credit Weighted Carrying Impairment

loss rate amount impaired loss rate amount
GHS GHS GHS GHS
9.69 174,258  (16,380) No 13.30 746,521 (99,296)
12.51 204,569  (25,590) No 13.44 302,682 (40,673)
16.55 128,675 (21,295) No 16.18 307,141 (49,696)
2470 151,632 (37,453) No 22.85 124,174 (28,369)
39.01 16,795 (6,552) No 35.94 68,617 (24,658)
52.39 49,681 (26,030) No 46.77 22,034 (10,304)
82.60 31,013  (25,618) No 69.73 11,770 (8,206)
100.00 219998 (219.998) Yes 100.00 227.892 (227.892)
976.621 (379.416) 1.810.831  (489.094)
50.00 5.292.422 (2.646.210) 50.00 2.318.317 (1.159.159)

14.038.862 (2.473.270)
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c. Financial risk management - (Cont'd)

ii. Credit risk - (Cont'd) ;

The company uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from individual
customers, which comprise a very large number of small balances.

Loss rates are calculated using a 'roll rate' method based on the probability of a receivable progressing
through successive stages of delinquency of write-off. Roll rates are calculated separately for exposures
in different segments based on the following common credit risk characteristics. These rates are
multiplied by scalar factors to reflect current conditions. Scalar factors are based on actual and forecasted
GDP growth and inflation rates which are as follows: Actuals- GDP growth rate of 3.12% and inflation
rate of 15.00%; Forecasts- GDP growth rate of 4.37% and inflation of 8.00%.

Macroeconomic Scenarios Scenario Type Probability Weighting

Moderate-case economic condition Increase GDP; Increase CPI 15%
Moderate-case economic condition Decrease GDP; Decrease CPI 15%
Best-case economic condition Increase GDP; Decrease CPI 5%
Worst-case economic condition Decrease GDP; Increase CPI 65%

Impairment losses on financial assets recognised in profit or loss were as follows:

2024 2023

GHS GHS
Opening balance 2,473,270 1,737,571
Impairment expense/(reversal) on trade receivables 1.199.111 735.699
Closing balance 3.672.381 2.473.270
Impairment expense comprises:

2024 2023

GHS GHS
Trade receivables written-off - 14,661
Impairment expense (reversal) on trade receivables 1.199.111 735.699
Impairment expense 1,199.111 750,360

The following significant changes in the gross amounts of trade receivables contributed to the changes in
the impairment expense during 2024:

e A growth in the business with open market customers and regional medical stores resulted in
increases in trade receivables of GHS 4,058,542 (2023:GHS (2,395,724)) and GHS 2,974,105 (2023:
GHS 1,827,511) respectively. This resulted in an increase in impairment expenses of GHS 178,262
(2023: GHS 86,635) and GHS 1,487,051 (2023: GHS1,110,078) for open market customers and
regional medical stores respectively. However, a decrease in trade receivables from institutional
customers of GHS 834,210 (2023: 72,895) resulted in a decrease in impairment expenses of GHS
109,678 (2023:GHS (287,744)). '

71



DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D
c. Financial risk management - (Cont'd)

ii. Credit risk - (Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of GHS 4,770,962 (2023: GHS 4,948,635) at the reporting
date. The cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable banks and other financial institutions
regulated by the Bank of Ghana.

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company either does not have sufficient financial resources available to '

meet all its obligations and commitments as they fall due or can access them only at excessive cost. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will maintain adequate liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. Financial assets the entity uses to manage its liquidity are its cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments
and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 2 mths or 2-12 1-2yrs 2-5yrs More

Amount less mths than 5 yrs

31 December 2024 GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 29,667,684 29,667,684 29,667,684 - - - -

Due to related party 1,271,773 1,485,951 76,467 382,335 458,802 568,347 -

Lease liabilities 3,143,451 5,201,467 230,306 1,151,530 1,381,835 2,035,946 401,850

Bank overdraft 10,292,679 10,292,679 10,292,679 - - = -

Loans and borrowings 14438315 16.060.601 1.786.915 7.399.465 6.874.221 - -

Balance at 31 December 2024  58.813.902 62.708.382 42.054.051 8.933.330 8.714.858 2.604.203 401,850

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,770,962 4,770,962 4,770,962 - - -
Trade and other receivables 17.238.068 17.238.068 17.238.068 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2024 22,009,030 22.009.030 22.009.030 - - =
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D

c. Financial risk management - (Cont'd)

fii. Liquidity risk
Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 2 mths or 2-12 1-2yrs 2-5yrs More

Amount less mths than 5 yrs

31 December 2023 GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS GHS
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 19,171,154 19,171,154 19,171,154 - - - -

Due to related party 1,241,061 1,241,061 - - 620,531 620,530 -

Lease liabilities 2,152,538 3,699,762 162,619 813,097 975,716 1,734,816 13,514

Bank overdraft 12,623,335 12,623,335 12,623,335 - - - =

Loans and borrowings 17.117.042 19.988.189 1.362.344 6.811.74110.722.643 1.091.461 -

Balance at 31 December 2023 22.305.130 56.723.501 33.319.452 7.624.83812.318.890 3.446.807 13.514

Non-derivative financial

assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,948,635 4,948,635 4,948,635
Trade and other receivables 12.181.453 12.181.453 12.181.453

Balance at 31 December 2023 17.130.088 17.130.088 17.130.088

iv.  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable

parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency. The currencies in which these transactions primarily are

denominated are US dollars (USD), Great British Pound (GBP) and Euro (EUR).
31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Balances shown in GHS equivalents EUR USD GBP EUR USD GBP
Cash and cash equivalents 270 37,196 = 270 1,431 -
Trade and other payables (5.740) (1.143.094) (8.720) (37.614) (741.169) -
Net statement of financial position

exposure (5.470) (1.105.898) (8.720) (37.344) (739.738) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - CONT'D
c. Financial risk management - (Cont'd)
iv  Market risk (Cont'd)

The following significant exchange rates are applied during the year:

Average Rate Reporting Date
2024 2023 2024 2023
GBP 1 18.8235 14.8850 18.7000 15.3700
EUR 1 15.8989 12.9512 15.5000 13.3410
UsD1 14.6625 11.9308 14.8800 12.0200

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% weakening of the cedi against the following currencies at 31 December 2024 would have
decreased equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2023.

Effect in GHS dollars
Effect on profit or
loss/equity
2024 2023
GHS GHS
GBP (16,306) 4
EUR : (8,479) (45.821)
UsD (1.645.576)  (889.165)

(1.670.361)  (938.986)

A 10% strengthening of the cedi against the above currencies would have exact opposite effect on equity
and profit or loss by the same amount shown above.

The Company’s exposure to exchange rate risk is in respect of amount due to foreign suppliers
for imports of various international transactions. The Company manages foreign exchange risk
by estimating forward looking rates in its Annual Planning process based on projected
depreciation of the Cedi against the major trading currencies. The system is set up with trigger
points for review of the rates to aid in the management of the risk.
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27. FINANCIAL INS;TRUMENTS —FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT - (CONT'D)

c. Financial risk management (Cont'd)
iv. Market risk (Cont'd)
Equity price risk

Sensitivity analysis

For investments classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, a 3% increase in the equity
prices at the reporting date would have increased equity by the amounts shown below. An equal change
in the opposite direction would also decrease equity by the amounts shown below.

Effect on profit or

loss/equity
2024 2023
GHS GHS

Equity

Interest rate risk

- 95,700

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Carrying amounts

Fixed rate instruments 2024 2023

GHS GHS
Bank overdraft ‘ (10,292,679) (12,623,335)
Loans and borrowings (14,438,315) (17,117,042)
Shareholder loan (1.194.927) (1.212.500)

25.925.921 30.952.877

=l #—.
The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities, at FVTPL.

Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company had no commitments for capital expenditure at the reporting date and at December 31
2023.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A labour suit filed by two plaintiffs contesting their summary dismissal and termination of appointment
respectively by the Defendant ("Starwin"- now DAS Pic). The case of the plaintiffs is that their dismissal
and termination of appointment by DAS Plc was wrongful.

Apart from damages and cost, the second plaintiff is praying the Court to order DAS Plc to pay the sum
of GHS 20,639.92 plus the monetary value of 100 litres of diesel.

The trial has concluded and the parties are waiting for a date for final judgement from the Court.

In the event that the Plaintiffs succeed, the liability of the Company (DAS) shall not exceed the
aforementioned reliefs, damages and costs.
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30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events subsequent to the reporting date are reflected in the financial statements only to the extent that
they relate directly to the financial statements and the effect is material. There were no events after 31
December 2024 that require disclosure in the financial statements.

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s policy is to develop a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of adjusted net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises
all components of equity as shown in the statement of financial position.

Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes this approach
given the size of the Company is reasonable.

The adjusted net debt to equity ratio for the Company at 31 December is as follows:

2024 2023

GHS GHS
Total liabilities 74,050,206 61,867,528
Cash and bank balances (4.770.962) (4.948.635)
Net 69.279.244 56.918.893
Total equity 26.757.437 16.350.026
Gearing 2.59 3.48

32. SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION

() Number of Shares in issue

Earnings per share are based on 84,765,899 weighted average number of equity shares in issue during the
year.

(ii) Number of Shareholders

The Company had 84,765,899 equity shares at the reporting date and at 31 December 2023 distributed as
follows:

Holding No. of Holders Total Holding % Holding
1-1000 7,730 1,895,725 2.24
1001-5000 s 670 1,345,336 1.59
5001-10000 64 462,996 0.55
10001 and over 85 81.061.842 95.63

8.549 84.765.899 100.00
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32. SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION- (CONT'D)

(iii)  List of twenty shareholders as at the reporting date and 31 December 2023

Shareholders

Equatorial Cross Acquisitions (ECA)
Social Security and National Insurance Trust
Yaw Opare-Asamozh

Amarteorkor Amarteifio

Mirfield Properties

Jacob Amekor Blucoo-Allotey
Worldwide Securities Limited
Starwin Products Limited

E.H. Boohene Foundation
International Central Gospel Church — Christ Temple
Teachers Fund

Sylvia Stella Amissah

Comfort Asiedu

Godfried Ampofo

Albert Gyang Boohene

Estate of Bernard Forson

Estate of P.I.A Quaye

Worldwide Securities Ltd Trust A/C
Starwin Trust Fund

Estate of Patrick Okai

Reported Totals

Others

Reported Totals

(iv) Directors’ shareholding

No. of shares

50,891,061
14,525,554
6,542,010
3,207,604
1,621,318
394,485
233,362
202,490
198,041
166,400
142,852
113,298
106,811
106,811
100,385
98,043
87,672
87,636
86,782
77.386
78,990,001
5.775.898
84.765.899

% of issued
capital

6
1

9

10

0.04
7.14
7.72
3.78
1.91
0.47
0.28
0.24
0.23
0.20
0.17
0.13
0.13
0.13
0.12
0.12
0.10
0.10
0.10
0.09
3.20

N
oo
o

0.0

]

The Directors named below held the following number of shares in the Company as at the reporting date

and at 31 December 2023:

Name of Director
Nik Amarteifio
Amarteorkor Amarteifio

*Shares held through Equatorial Cross Acquisitions.

No. of shares
50,891,061
3.207.604
54.098.665

% of issued
capital
60.04

3.78

63.82
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Appendix 1
EXTRACT OF DANNEX AYRTON STARWIN PLC CODE OF ETHICS

1. Purpose

To ensure staff have detailed understanding of company’s minimum standards of operation and the
expectations of customers and stakeholders at all times.

2. Standards of Practicé

2.1 Bribery and Corruption

* Any payments or gifts other than business expenses which intends to induce or influence someone or
public official in the performance of his legitimate duty is prohibited by the company.

e Guidance should be sought from CEO and CHRO in contrary to this directive.
2.2 Records Keeping

Detailed records of all gifts received must be logged unto the NAV or be kept in written form by

authorized employees and the HR Department notified. Records dealings should be prepared with strict
accuracy.

2.3 Treatment of Customers

All employees are entreated to know the obligations of the business towards customers and to understand
and meet their expectations. Open and clear communication is vital to this.

2.4 Suppliers
Suppliers are to be treated fairly in accordance with agreed terms of trade.

2.5 Competition

e DAS Plc will compete fairly with competitors and their parties. Employees should be confidential
and not divulge or share trade secrets with its competitors.

3. Corporate Governance

DAS Ple complies with legal and regulatory requirements to protect shareholder interest and the
business.

3.1 Compliance with Law

All managers are to be aware of laws and regulations affecting their area of operations and ensure to take
legal advice where appropriate.

3.2 Accounting Standards and Records

All accounts documentation must be in conformity with regulatory requirements.
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Appendix 1 - (cont'd)
3.3 External Reporting

e All statements or reports to regulators, govt. agencies or stakeholders should always be correct,
timely and not misleading.

e  Only authorized persons are permitted to represent DAS Plc on all external matters.
3.4 Policies and Procedures

Management is to ensure to the compliance and management of risks policy and procedures by staff and
as well manage risk associated with these policies.

4. Our Commitment to our employees

DAS Plc is committed to achieve a work environment in which team spirit, goals and values, fairness
dignity and respect are maintained by all employees.

4.1 Labour Act
e DAS Plc will always act in compliance with the Labour Act 651.

4.2 Harassment

e All unwanted behavior will not be countenanced under any circumstances. CHRO should be notified
of such behavior.

4.3 Equal Opportunity

o All employees will be given equal opportunities for advancement based on their performance ability
and aptitude. :

4.4 Health and Safety

e DAS Plc provides the highest priority on Health and Safety of all employees.”Methods of operations
will constantly be reviewed to protect workers. Leaders should be role models in ensuring high
standards of Health and Safety.

4.5 Pre employment screening and selection

o DAS Plc will apply rigorous pre-employment screening and selection to protect interest of employees
and customers.
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5. Good Corporate Citizen

e DAS Plc is committed to being a good corporate citizen by taking account of the socio-economic
environment of the business.

5.1 Environment

e Will conduct business with respect to the environmental requirements. Activities that will have a
negative impact on the environment will be avoided.

5.2 Corporate Social Responsibility

* DAS Ple is fully committed in supporting and assisting charitable activities which have positive
impact in communities and society.

6. Employee Commitment
Employees must be committed and promote the interest of the business at all times.

6.1 Confidential Information

e Confidential information except information required by law must not be used for personal gain but
for advancement of the business. Disclosure of confidential information is not permitted unless
otherwise authorized: for legitimate business.

6.2 Conflict of Interest

e Any activity that conflicts with the interest of the company must be avoided.
6.3 Social Networking

e Employees who engage in social networking on behalf of the business must conduct themselves in
accordance with DAS Plc values and policies.
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